
 

 

  TOWN OF BARNSTABLE 
 

NOTICE OF MEETINGS OF TOWN DEPARTMENTS AND ALL TOWN BOARDS 
As Required by Chapter 28 of the Acts of 2009, amending MGL Chapter 30A 

 
NAME OF PUBLIC BODY – COMMITTEE, BOARD OR COMMISSION: 

 
AMENDED REGULAR MEETING AGENDA                

COMMUNITY PRESERVATION COMMITTEE 
 

DATE OF MEETING:      Monday, June 2, 2025 

TIME:  5:30 p.m.   

PLACE:  The Community Preservation Committee (CPC) meeting will be held by remote participation 

methods pursuant to the passage of legislation extending certain COVID-19 measures adopted during the 
state of emergency in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.   
  
Alternative public access to this meeting will be provided in the following manner: 
 

1. This meeting will be replayed via Xfinity Channel 8 or high-definition Channel 1072. It may also be 
accessed via the Government Access Channel live video on demand archives on the Town of 
Barnstable’s website: https://streaming85.townofbarnstable.us/CablecastPublicSite/?channel=1 

 
2. Real-time public comment can be addressed to the Community Preservation Committee utilizing 

the Zoom link or telephone number and access code for remote access below. 

 Link:  https://zoom.us/j/88073098119          
 
 Or by calling the US Toll-free Telephone Number:  888-475-4499  

Meeting ID: 880 7309 8119  
        

3. Applicants, their representatives, and individuals required or entitled to appear before the 
Community Preservation Committee may appear remotely and are not permitted to be physically 
present at the meeting and may participate through the link or telephone number provided above.  
Documentary exhibits and/or visual presentations should be submitted in advance of the meeting 
to Sarah.Beal@town.barnstable.ma.us so that they may be displayed for remote public access 
viewing. 

 
Meeting materials will be available at 

https://www.townofbarnstable.us/boardscommittees/communitypreservationcommittee/ prior to 
the meeting. 

 

This meeting of the Community Preservation Committee is being recorded and broadcast on the Town of Barnstable’s 
Government Access Channel.  In accordance with MGL Chapter 30A, s. 20, the Chair must inquire whether anyone else is 

recording this meeting and to please make their presence known 
 

Call to Order: 

 

Roll Call of the Members: 

 
 

Addition of CPC 
member vote to use 
CPA Administration 
Funds to pay ½ of the 
appraisal fee for 
Anthony’s Cummaquid 
Inn property.  
Originally posted May 
29, 2025 at 2:37 p.m. 



 

 

 
Minutes:    

• Approval of the Draft Community Preservation Committee Regular Meeting Minutes from April 
28, 2025.    
 
 

Letters of Intent:  
 

• A Letter of Intent has been received from Barnstable Land Trust (BLT) requesting $650,000 in 
Community Preservation Open Space funds in support of the acquisition and preservation of 
4.5 acres of open space land with significant conservation values adjacent to Barnstable Land 
Trust’s Eagle Pond Sanctuary and bordering Mosswood Cemetery addressed 304 Putnam 
Ave, Cotuit, map 037, parcel 010.  This funding request is seeking to implement the second 
phase of the project by the permanent protection of 4.5 acres of the 9-acre property that was 
purchased in the first phase of the project in January 2025 using general municipal funds.  The 
total purchase price is $1,300,000 and the overall goal of this land protection project is for the 
Town to secure half of the property for cemetery purposes and to dedicate the remaining half 
to open space and conservation purposes, subject to a conservation restriction that will be 
purchased by BLT.  The remaining funds will be raised by BLT through private fundraising and 
state grant funding. 

 

• A Letter of Intent has been received from Barnstable Land Trust (BLT) requesting $307,500 in 
Community Preservation Open Space funds to preserve an ecologically important retired 
cranberry bog property consisting of 25.74 acres within the Great Marsh and Barnstable 
Harbor watershed addressed 301 Parker Road, West Barnstable, map 176, parcel 019.  The 
total purchase price is $615,000 and BLT will apply for an MA Conservation Partnership Grant 
in June 2025 to help fund the acquisition.  BLT will grant a conservation restriction to the Town 
of Barnstable to ensure the land is preserved in perpetuity.   
 

Applications: 
 

• An Application has been received from Barnstable Land Trust requesting $600,000 in 
Community Preservation Open Space funds in support of the acquisition and preservation of 
13 acres of high priority, ecologically significant pond-front property on Mill Pond addressed 
3640 Falmouth Road, Marstons Mills, map 058, parcel 012.  The total purchase price is 
$1,200,000 and a Mass Conservation Partnership grant for $425,000 will be applied for in June 
2025.  Barnstable Land Trust will own the property and a conservation restriction to be granted 
to the Town of Barnstable. 

 

• An Application has been received from Town of Barnstable DPW requesting $406,282 in 
Community Preservation Open Space and Recreation funds to revitalize and improve Cotuit 
Memorial Park located at 889 Main Street, Cotuit, map 035, parcel 051.  The total estimated 
project cost is $520,434 with $114,152 in capital improvement funding to be provided.  The 
Cotuit Civic Association has requested the rejuvenation of this park that is a focal point for the 
village connecting the library, waterfront, playground, and post office. 

 

• An Application has been received from the Affordable Housing/Growth & Development Trust 
Fund Board requesting the transfer of a total of $2.5 Million Dollars in Community Preservation 
Community Housing and Undesignated funds to continue to prioritize strategies and actions to 
address the severe housing shortages that Cape Cod continues to experience.   

 



 

 

 
Correspondence Received 
 None. 

 
Project Updates: 

• Smith’s Creek Conservation Restriction CPC Application was approved at the April 17, 2025, 
Town Council public hearing.  The closing will be scheduled. 

• The West Barnstable Railroad Depot Restoration CPC Application is scheduled for Town 
Council public hearing June 5, 2025. 

• Cotuit Highground Conservation Restriction has been scheduled for Town Council public 
hearing June 5, 2025.   

• The Hyannis Armory Restoration CPC Application is scheduled for Town Council public 
hearing June 5, 2025. 

• Conservation Restrictions for the Harju and Prince Avenue properties have been requested to 
be placed on an upcoming Town Council agenda for approval.   

• The consultant has begun work on the required Form E associated with the Letter of Intent 
from South Congregational Church Burial Ground. MHC had determined an updated Form E is 
required to facilitate the completion of the draft preservation restriction from 2017.  Quotes for 
fencing have been received. 

• The consultant has begun work on the preservation restriction associated with the Letter of 
Intent from Oddfellows Lodge seeking CPA historic preservation funds to preserve the 
building. 

• A site visit to the Barnstable Historical Society Headquarters building took place on May 7, 
2025.  Additional bids for the installation of HVAC will be obtained.  Reallocation of the 
remaining grant funds will be required through action of the Town Council. 

 
Member Discussion: 

• CPC vote to use $2,250 in CPA Administrative Funds to pay ½ of the fee for Anthony’s 
Cummaquid Inn property appraisal.   

• Meeting format for the July 21, 2025, Community Preservation Committee meeting.   

• CPC Annual Meeting date. 
 
Public Comment: 
 
Adjournment: 
 

CPC Regular Meeting Scheduled July 21, 2025 - 5:30 p.m. 
 

Please Note:       The list of matters is those reasonably anticipated by the chair, which may be discussed at the meeting. Not all items listed may be 
discussed and other items not listed may also be brought up for discussion to the extent permitted by law.  It is possible that if it so votes, the Committee 
may go into executive session. The Committee may also act on items in an order other than they appear on this agenda.  Public files are available for 
viewing during normal business hours at the Community Preservation office located at 367 Main Street, Hyannis, MA 
 
For your information the section of the M.G.L. that pertains to postings of meetings is as follows:   Except in an emergency, in addition to any notice 
otherwise required by law, a public body shall post notice of every meeting at least 48 hours prior to such a meeting, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and 
legal holidays.  In an emergency, a public body shall post notice as soon as reasonably possible prior to such meeting.  Notice shall be printed in a legible, 
easily understandable format and shall contain:  the date, time and place of such meeting and a listing of topics that the chair reasonably anticipates will 
be discussed at the meeting.  Meetings of a local public body, notice shall be filed with the municipal clerk and posted in a manner conspicuously visible 
to the public at all hours in or on the municipal building in which the clerk’s office is located.   



 

367 Main Street, Hyannis, MA  02601 
Phone:  508-862-4749   Fax:  508-862-4782 

 

 

1 

 

   

Committee Members 
Lindsey B. Counsell – Chair • Tom Lee – Vice Chair • Vacant – Clerk/Historical Commission • Terry Duenas – At Large • Katherine Garofoli – At Large 

Stephen Robichaud– Planning Board • Tom Lee – Conservation Commission • Vacant – Recreation Commission 
   Deborah Converse – Housing Authority • Farley Lewis – At Large • Kristin Terkelsen – Town Council Liaison   

Monday, April 28, 2025 

Regular Public Hearing DRAFT Minutes 

Meeting Held Via Zoom 

5:30 PM 

 

Lindsey Counsell – Chair Absent 

Tom Lee-Vice Chair Present 

Katherine Garofoli Present 

Deborah Converse Present  

Stephen Robichaud  Present 

Farley Lewis Present 

Terry Duenas Present 

 
Call to Order: 
Notice of Recording:  With a quorum present, Chair Lindsey Counsell called the meeting 
to order at 5:30 pm and read: “Please note that tonight’s meeting is recorded and 
broadcast on Channel 18 and, in accordance with MGL Chapter 30A, s.20, I must inquire 
whether anyone else is taping this meeting and to please make their presence known.”  
No one present was recording the meeting. 
 
ROLL CALL: Terry Duenas (present), Katherine Garofoli (present), Tom Lee (present), 
Deb Converse (present), Farley Lewis (present), Steve Robichaud (present).  Lindsey 
Counsell (absent) 
 
Tom Lee is acting Chairman for this meeting. 
 
CPA Financial Update – Director of Finance, Mark Milne 
Director of Finance, Mark Milne, referred to the Financial Reports that were shared in the 
meeting packet saying that the recent appropriation for the Cotuit Highgrounds CR has 
been added to the report displayed tonight.  He explained that the schedule depicts the 
remaining balances for each CPA program area to date including all the FY 2025 
appropriation activity and set asides for the CPC.  He noted the balance for Community 
Housing available for appropriations is just over $795,000 and Historic Preservation has 
a little over $239,000.  He said there are contingent awards for the West Barnstable RR 
Depot and Cotuit Highgrounds with 0 in open space/recreation, however the budget 
reserve and undesignated fund equals $13.5M available for any one of the three 
program areas and said that altogether CPC has $14.6M of available resources for the 
Community Preservation Fund as of today.   
 
 
 

Town of Barnstable 

COMMUNITY PRESERVATION COMMITTEE 

www.town.barnstable.ma.us/CommunityPreservation 

Email: CommunityPreservationCommittee@town.barnstable.ma.us 

 

  



 

367 Main Street, Hyannis, MA  02601 
Phone:  508-862-4749   Fax:  508-862-4782 

 

 

2 

 

Mr. Milne explained the summary of active appropriations that are open and approved 
and are still in the process of being completed.  That amount totals $5.5M with $4.2M 
remaining in those expenditures.  He said there are about 15 open projects as of today 
and will continue to be updated with any new Town Council actions.   
 
Mr. Milne explained that as of today, $3.6M in surtaxes for the CPA tax has been 
collected and CPC has received $1.3M in state funds with $800,000 of that amount 
being the matching funds from the state’s trust fund.  He explained that the remaining 
$490,000 was from a grant we received for the Wheeler Road CR.  Through March 
2025, there are investment earnings of $504,000 and will likely reach $600,000 in 
investment earnings on the excess cash in the CPA fund for FY 2025 when it closes on 
June 30, 2025.   
 
Expenditures to date include $80,000 in administrative expenses, $168,000 community 
recreation projects, $542,000 for open space projects: $38,000 for historic preservation, 
and $363,000 for debt service.  He explained that if those total expenditures of 
$1,192,000 are subtracted from the total revenues to date, there is a surplus of 
$4,240,000 and if added to the fund balance in this fund of $17M from the beginning of 
FY25, there is $21,774,000 of fund balance. 
 
Mr. Milne explained that the last page of the report shows how the $21.7M is broken up:   
$586,000 set aside for encumbrances; $239,000 available for Historic Preservation, 
$795,000 for Community Housing, and $0 for Open Space/Recreation.   $4.1M is 
continuing appropriations; $15.9M is unreserved funds.  He explained that cash at the 
current date is almost $21.8M and there is about $1.2M surtax receivable and about 
$296,000 of remaining bonds payable for the Community Preservation fund that consists 
mainly of the loan for Town Hall renovations back in 2010, noting that that loan will expire 
in 2030.  He said that this is good news that there is very little debt remaining in this 
fund.  He explained that Land Bank debt is paid off with the exception of one small loan 
remaining and the Town Hall note effective until 2030. He said there is some capacity to 
think about a comprehensive package for any one of these program areas that the 
committee may want to consider. 
 
In answer to CPC members’ questions Mr. Milne said that the status of projects is 
reviewed on a quarterly basis and noted that grant funds for three projects that closed 
were returned to the CPA last year.  He said that a new bond program especially for 
recreation and playgrounds has been discussed and is being considered.           
 
Presentation of the Affordable Housing Growth & Development Trust Board’s 2024 
Year End Report Trust Administrator – Jillian Douglass 
Jillian Douglass narrated a PowerPoint presentation and said she was prepared to 
answer any questions the CPC may have related to the 2024 Year End Report.   She 
identified the members of the Trust Board and noted that there is a vacancy on the Board 
after Wendy Northcross resigned.   
 
Ms. Douglass provided an update on the housing market saying that even with all the 
efforts at the town, regional and state levels, demand is outpacing the supply of year-
round affordable homes for rent or ownership.  She explained that while builders are 
producing new units, most are not affordable, and most local wages are insufficient to 
pay for the current standard market rent of $1,200.  She shared that renters are 



 

367 Main Street, Hyannis, MA  02601 
Phone:  508-862-4749   Fax:  508-862-4782 

 

 

3 

 

spending over 30% of their monthly income on housing and wait lists for the deed-
restricted affordable units are between 3 and 10 years which is not sustainable.  
Additionally, there are very few vacancies in year-round units with a low turnover rate.  
As a result, lower income earners are not coming to Cape Cod and are leaving.  
 
Ms. Douglass indicated that an Affordable Housing Trust is intended to be nimbler that 
other municipal entities and can act quickly when market conditions arise.  A Trust can 
engage in real estate activities and collect funds from sources that other municipal 
entities cannot.  She stressed, however, that the primary way that municipalities and the 
Trust preserve the affordability of housing units is through permanent deed restrictions.     
 
A list of the current Trust grants and subsidies as of 2024 was displayed and Ms. 
Douglass offered to elaborate on each project at another time.  She noted that the 
current balance remaining in the Trust is $839,000 from all the appropriation transfers 
from CPA funds and said this equates to the subsidy of about 6 deed-restricted units.  
Ms. Douglass said there are other funds coming into the Trust generated through a 
regulatory agreement with the K Mart Plaza called the WS Landing Agreement.  This 
agreement provides a 10-year stream of $75,000 per year with a lump sum payment of 
$1,750,000 to the Trust scheduled at the end of the term. 
 
In answer to CPC members questions, Ms. Douglass said that the Trust does not 
support a rental assistance program and would need to contract with an entity that 
provides this service as the Trust is prohibited from directly providing funds to recipients.  
She noted that the Trust is receiving applications for the development of affordable units 
which has a broader impact than individual support does, not to say that it is not a worthy 
program.   It was noted that federal funds have been cut for Housing Authorities that 
handle rental subsidies.  Ms. Douglass noted that the Trust has not been involved with 
the creation of Affordable Dwelling Units (ADUs) however there are other towns that 
have set aside some funds in support of zero-interest loans and there is also some 
money available at the state level for ADUs.  
 
There was CPC members discussion regarding the need for a more robust and in-depth 
conversation at the Trust’s Application stage and the recognition that housing is a major 
issue that requires much more discussion.  The idea of quarterly reports from the Trust 
and dedicated CPC meetings regarding housing were presented.  Additionally, it was 
proposed that since the CPA fund is the main funding source for the Trust, that a 
member of the CPC be included on the Trust Board if possible.  Ms. Douglass said she 
would carry the CPC’s message back to the Trust Board.  
 
 

Minutes:    

• Approval of the Draft Community Preservation Committee Regular Meeting 
Minutes from March 17, 2025.  
   

The motion of Deb Converse was seconded by Steve Robichaud to approve the 
meeting minutes as submitted.  
Roll Call Vote: Tom Lee (yes), Deb Converse (yes), Terry Duenas (yes), Katherine 
Garofoli (yes), Farley Lewis (yes), and Steve Robichaud (yes), 6 yes – 0 no.  Motion 
Carried. 
 



 

367 Main Street, Hyannis, MA  02601 
Phone:  508-862-4749   Fax:  508-862-4782 

 

 

4 

 

 
 

Letters of Intent:  

• A Letter of Intent has been received from the Affordable Housing/Growth & 
Development Trust Fund Board requesting the transfer of a total of $2.5 Million 
Dollars in Community Preservation Community Housing and Undesignated funds 
to continue to prioritize strategies and actions to address the severe housing 
shortages that Cape Cod continues to experience.   

 
There was discussion regarding the type of housing activities the $2.5M allocation to the 
Trust would support.  Ms. Douglass noted that primarily the Trust has been receiving 
applications for the Trust to provide subsidies for the creation of deed-restricted 
affordable units within a housing development.  She explained that the units the Trust 
subsidizes are over and above the required 10% inclusionary units.  After a brief 
discussion, it was agreed that the purpose of the request submitted by the Trust is well 
understood and an in-depth discussion will be needed at the Application stage.  
 
The motion of Deb Converse was seconded by Katherine Garofoli to move the 
Affordable Housing Trust’s Letter of Intent to Application stage.    
Roll Call Vote: Tom Lee (yes), Deb Converse (yes), Terry Duenas (yes), Katherine 
Garofoli (yes), Farley Lewis (yes), and Steve Robichaud (yes), 6 yes – 0 no.  Motion 
Carried. 

 

• A Letter of Intent has been received from Barnstable Land Trust requesting 
$600,000 in Community Preservation Open Space funds in support of the 
acquisition and preservation of 13 acres of high priority, ecologically significant 
pond-front property on Mill Pond addressed 3640 Falmouth Road, Marstons Mills, 
map 058, parcel 012.  The total purchase price is $1,200,000 and a Mass 
Conservation Partnership grant for $425,000 will be applied for in June 2025.  
Barnstable Land Trust will own the property and a conservation restriction to be 
granted to the Town of Barnstable. 

 
Janet Milkman, Executive Director of Barnstable Land Trust (BLT), narrated a 
PowerPoint presentation and said that this project has incredible ecological value.  The 
Letter of Intent is for support for the acquisition of 13 acres fronting Mill Pond at the 
intersection of Routes149 and 28 on which BLT has an executed P&S with the owners.  
She explained that the property scores are incredibly high in terms of the state ecological 
conservation layers called bio maps saying that the entire property is in some category of 
rare species, natural landscape or core habitat components.   She explained each bio 
map displayed and the significance of each.  Ms. Milkman explained that half of the 
property is in Zone II and very near COMM Water District wellheads.  She indicated that 
the land is fully developable land, however, as open space it would connect to 400 acres 
of open space owned by the Town and Barnstable Land Trust and private owners.  
Development of this property would be detrimental to Mill Pond and other waters and the 
surrounding open space.    Ms. Milkman noted that there are plans to reconstruct the 
existing fish ladder, connection of trails, and other town interests that will be identified 
and included in the drafting of the conservation restriction that will be granted to the town 
by BLT. 
 
 



 

367 Main Street, Hyannis, MA  02601 
Phone:  508-862-4749   Fax:  508-862-4782 

 

 

5 

 

 
The motion of Katherine Garofoli was seconded by Farley Lewis to move the 
Barnstable Land Trust’s Letter of Intent to Application stage.    
Roll Call Vote: Tom Lee (yes), Deb Converse (yes), Terry Duenas (yes), Katherine 
Garofoli (yes), Farley Lewis (yes), and Steve Robichaud (yes), 6 yes – 0 no.  Motion 
Carried. 
 

• A Letter of Intent has been received from Town of Barnstable DPW requesting 
$407,000 in Community Preservation Open Space and Recreation funds to 
revitalize and improve Cotuit Memorial Park located at 889 Main Street, Cotuit, 
map 035, parcel 051.  The total estimated project cost is $521,000 with $114,000 
in capital improvement funding to be provided.  The Cotuit Civic Association has 
requested the rejuvenation of this park that is a focal point for the village 
connecting the library, waterfront, playground, and post office. 

 
Mr. Mark Marinaccio narrated a PowerPoint presentation saying that the Cotuit Memorial 
Park revitalization is the number one project supported by the Cotuit Civic Association 
and has been in the works for 2 years.  The PowerPoint presentation depicted pictures of 
the park as it exists.   Planned improvements were noted as removal and replanting of 
diseased trees and improvements and connections of the walkways to bring them into 
compliance with ADA requirements and to provide access to School Street and the 
library.    As a part of the project the flagpole will be pushed back in order to reroute the 
walkways.  The project will include irrigation and new plantings and the opening up green 
space for community activities.  The park is maintained by Structures and Grounds and 
will be maintained using organic practices.  He noted that the playground on the site 
does not belong to the town and that the Property Management Department is in 
discussions with the abutting church as the playground is part of their daycare facility.   
 
The motion of Steve Robichaud was seconded by Tom Lee to move the 
Department of Public Works Letter of Intent to the Application stage.    
Roll Call Vote: Tom Lee (yes), Deb Converse (yes), Terry Duenas (yes), Katherine 
Garofoli (yes), Farley Lewis (yes), and Steve Robichaud (yes), 6 yes – 0 no.  Motion 
Carried. 
 

• Letter of Intent from Odd Fellows Lodge requesting $69,360 in Community 
Preservation Historic Preservation funds for preservation and restoration work for 
the Odd Fellows building including roof, gutters, trim replacement, foundation 
repair and waterproofing.  The building is listed on the State Register of Historic 
Places.  Continued from March 17, 2025.  

 
Katherine Garofoli left the meeting at 6:30 p.m. 
 
Mr. Paul Davies said he has received a quote for a building assessment from a 
preservation architect for $4,800.  He noted that pressing issues for the building exist 
saying that the gutters on both sides are allowing water to infiltrate the walls and splash 
onto abutting buildings.  Chair Lee said that CPC Administrative Fund can pay for the 
building assessment, however a vote is required from the CPC members.    
 
 
 



 

367 Main Street, Hyannis, MA  02601 
Phone:  508-862-4749   Fax:  508-862-4782 

 

 

6 

 

The motion of Deb Converse was seconded by Steve Robichaud to approve the 
use of $4,800 in CPC Administrative funds for the preservation architect to prepare 
a building assessment for Oddfellows Lodge, Hyannis.    
Roll Call Vote: Tom Lee (yes), Deb Converse (yes), Terry Duenas (yes), Farley 
Lewis (yes), and Steve Robichaud (yes), 5 yes – 0 no.  Motion Carried. 
 
Applications: 

• An Application has been received from the Department of Public Works 
requesting $2,900,000 in Community Preservation Historic Preservation Funds to 
begin revitalization work on the Hyannis Armory located at 225 South Street, 
Hyannis, map 326, parcel 004.  Proposed improvements in this phase will 
preserve the building envelope including masonry restoration, masonry steel lintel 
work, window and door replacement, and roof restoration or replacement.  This 
funding request represents a portion of the total full estimated project cost of 
$10,000,000 with matching funds provided totaling $867,175.  The Hyannis 
Armory is listed on the State Register of Historic Places as a contributing building 
in the Hyannis Main Street Waterfront Historic District and holds a significant 
place in American history as it was at the Armory that President-elect John F. 
Kennedy delivered his acceptance speech following the 1960 election.   

 
Mr. Mark Marinaccio narrated a PowerPoint presentation saying that the Armory project 
is the first phase for adaptive reuse of the building.  He noted that the building is listed as 
a Cultural Resource in the Hyannis Main Street Waterfront Historic District and is 
included on the Legacy Trail as a stop because it was the locus of JFK’s presidential 
acceptance speech in 1963.  The PowerPoint depicted pictures of the exterior where 
water is leaking in from the roof, and corroded steel lintels over the windows and 
cracking masonry that is allowing water into the system with the freeze /thaw cycle 
making things worse.  Mr. Marinaccio noted that the old steel windows are corroding and 
in danger of falling out in some places.  He explained that the Town Council previously 
appropriated $867,175 for asbestos abatement and architectural design for this building. 
He said that approximately ten years ago, DPW was asked to provide a proposed plan 
for the building, however, there was no outside interest, so DPW proposed that the 
building be reused as town offices.  He noted that the hall could seat 250 to 275 for the 
Town Council and other functions and proposed construction of Town Council, Town 
Manager, and Legal Department Offices.  He displayed floor plans and renderings of the 
interior space to demonstrate how it could be used instead of the present use as cold 
storage.  Mr. Marinaccio identified how the project met multiple criteria for eligibility of 
CPA funds for both general CPA and specifically for CPA Historic Preservation funds.  He 
indicated that 80 – 90% of the asbestos abatement has been completed in the building 
and that with 95% completed construction documents, he anticipated the bid process 
could begin in the summer, with construction in the spring of 2026, and completion of the 
project in the fall/winter of 2026.  Funding and budget breakdowns were displayed.  He 
noted that every year he submits CIP requests for the Armory and plans to submit one in 
August for the interior of the building.  He explained that this request is for the exterior 
only as it is most important to stop water infiltration and decay, then tackle the 
mechanical systems, and finally the interior finishes.     
 
 
 
 



 

367 Main Street, Hyannis, MA  02601 
Phone:  508-862-4749   Fax:  508-862-4782 

 

 

7 

 

The motion of Tom Lee was seconded by Steve Robichaud:  The Community 
Preservation Committee recommends to the Town Council through the Town 
Manager the Department of Public Works Application for $2,900,000 in Community 
Preservation Funds for the preservation and restoration of the Hyannis Armory 
located at 225 South Street, Hyannis, Map 326, Parcel 004 by preserving the 
building envelope including masonry restoration, steel lintel work, window and 
door replacement, and roof restoration or replacement.  Funds are to first be 
expended from the Community Preservation Historic Preservation Fund and any 
remaining balance expended secondly from the Community Preservation 
Undesignated Fund. 
Roll Call Vote: Tom Lee (yes), Deb Converse (yes), Terry Duenas (yes), Farley 
Lewis (yes), and Steve Robichaud (yes), 5 yes – 0 no.  Motion Carried. 
 
Correspondence Received 

• A letter has been received from the Barnstable Historical Society requesting the 
reallocation of $24,832 of unused grant funds that were designated for Phase I 
work, for the purpose of installing a much-needed central air conditioning system 
to preserve the building and its artifacts.   Estimates have been received for this 
work that are within the balance of unused grant funds.  

 
After brief discussion it was decided that a more detailed cost estimate is required 
outlining exactly what is needed for the HVAC system.  A site visit will be set up to 
facilitate this request.  

 
Member Discussion: 

• It was decided that the meeting format for the May 19, 2025, Community 
Preservation Committee meeting would be remote.     

 
Public Comment: 
None 
 
Adjournment: 
The motion of Steve Robichaud was seconded by Terry Duenas to adjourn the 
meeting. 
Roll Call Vote: Tom Lee (yes), Deb Converse (yes), Terry Duenas (yes), Farley 
Lewis (yes), and Steve Robichaud (yes), 5 yes – 0 no.  Meeting adjourned at 6:45 
p.m. 
 

 
 
 

Next CPC Regular Meeting Scheduled May 19, 2025, 5:30 p.m. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

367 Main Street, Hyannis, MA  02601 
Phone:  508-862-4749   Fax:  508-862-4782 

 

 

8 

 

List of documents/exhibits used by the Committee at the meeting: 
 

Exhibit 1 –CPC Regular Meeting Agenda, April 28, 2025. 
Exhibit 2 – Draft CPC Meeting Minutes – March 17, 2025  
Exhibit 3 – CPC Fund Financial Reports April 28, 2025 – Mark Milne, Director of Finance. 
Exhibit 4 - Affordable Housing Growth & Development Trust End of Year Report – 2024. 
Exhibit 5 – PowerPoint presentation – Affordable Housing Growth & Development Trust 
Board End of Year Report to CPC – 2024. 
Exhibit 6 - Letter of Intent – Affordable Housing Growth & Development Trust -$2.5M 
Exhibit 6 - Letter of Intent – Barnstable Land Trust – Acquisition of 13 acres fronting on 
Mill Pond, Marstons Mills – Conservation Restriction to the Town of Barnstable 
Exhibit 7 – PowerPoint presentation – Barnstable Land Trust – Mill Pond Acquisition 
Exhibit 8 – Letter of Intent – DPW – Cotuit Memorial Park Revitalization 
Exhibit 9 – PowerPoint presentation – DPW – Cotuit Memorial Park Revitalization 
Exhibit 10 – Proposal by preservation architect for assessment of Oddfellows Lodge 
Exhibit 11 – Application – DPW – Restoration of the exterior of the Hyannis Armory 
Exhibit 12 – PowerPoint presentation – DPW – Restoration of the Hyannis Armory 
Exhibit 13 – Letter from Barnstable Historical Society requesting reallocation of 
remaining grant funds for installation of HVAC system. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Ellen M. Swiniarski 
Community Preservation Coordinator 

Planning & Development Department 
 
Please Note:  The list of matters is reasonably anticipated by the Chair which may be discussed at the 
meeting. Not all items listed may be discussed, and other items not listed may also be brought up for 
discussion to the extent permitted by law.  It is possible that, if it votes so, the Committee may go into 
Executive Session for specified allowable reasons. The Committee may also act on items in an order other 
than they appear on this agenda.  

 
* Public files are available for viewing during normal business hours at the Community Preservation 

office located at 367 Main Street, Hyannis, MA 



 

 
1540 Main St., West Barnstable, MA 02668, blt.org, (508) 771-2585

 

 

 

        May 13, 2025 

To the Members of the Town of Barnstable Community Preservation Committee: 

I am writing to submit this Letter of Intent for funding to preserve an important open space 
area on Putnam Ave in Cotuit, adjacent to Barnstable Land Trust’s Eagle Pond Sanctuary. 

Project Name:  Captain’s Woods Land Protection Project 
Owner:   Town of Barnstable (municipal purposes) 
Location:  304 Putnam Ave, Cotuit 
Acres:    4.5 acres 
Map & Parcel: 037/010 
Purchase Price:  $1,300,000 
CPA Request: $650,000 
Timeline: CR to be recorded by June 30, 2026 

Barnstable Land Trust, Inc. (BLT) and the Town of Barnstable are partnering on this important 
9-acre± land protection project on Putnam Ave in Cotuit, bordering the Mosswood Cemetery 
and adjacent to BLT’s Eagle Pond Sanctuary. The overall goal of this land protection project 
is for the Town to secure half of the property for cemetery purposes and dedicate the 
remaining half to open space and conservation purposes, subject to a conservation 
restriction (CR) to be purchased by BLT.  

In January 2025, the Town completed the first phase of the project, taking title to the entire 
9-acre± property using general municipal funds. This funding request before the CPC seeks 
to implement the second phase of the project, for the permanent protection of 4.5-acres 
through the sale of a Conservation Restriction to BLT.  

Protection of this 4.5-acre wooded open space area will protect the following important 
conservation values: 

• The property is bordered by significant existing open space including the 78-acre 
Mosswood Cemetery property to the south and west, and the Barnstable Land Trust 
183-acre Eagle Pond and Little River Sanctuary to the east. The property is part of a 
larger 800-acre greenbelt that includes Eagle Pond, Bell Farm, Lowell Park 
Woodlands, and land protected for drinking water purposes. 

• The property lies within the Little River and Three Bays Watershed. The Three Bays 
estuary is considered to have impaired water quality as a result of excessive nutrient 



 
1540 Main St., West Barnstable, MA 02668, blt.org, (508) 771-2585

 

inputs. Protecting this 4.5-acre property from future development will help protect 
water quality in the Little River and Three Bays Watershed. 

• The property includes 750 feet of frontage along Putnam Ave, designated a Scenic 
Road by the Town of Barnstable, with the purpose of protecting scenic quality and 
character. 

• The property is likely rare species habitat for the Eastern Box Turtle (but not 
currently mapped).  The property is 500 feet from mapped BioMap Rare Species 
Core Habitat and across the road from BioMap Local Weland Habitat and Buffer. 

• The property is proximate to mapped BioMap Local Landscape area, representing 
the most intact natural areas in the town, including mosaics of forests, wetlands, 
and streams 

 
Timeline for Preserving the Land: Barnstable Land Trust, Inc. will assist the Town with the 
drafting of the Conservation Restriction for state and local approval.  The CR will be recorded 
sometime in the first half of 2026, and no later than June 30, 2026 as required by state grant 
funding. 

Funding Request: Barnstable Land Trust seeks $650,000 in Community Preservation Act 
funds in support of the $1,300,000 CR purchase price. The remaining funding will be raised 
by BLT through an application for state grant funding and through private fundraising.  

A locus map of the project area is attached for information 

Thank you for your consideration. 

Sincerely,  

 

 
Janet Milkman 
Executive Director 
508-771-2585 x 101 
  



 
1540 Main St., West Barnstable, MA 02668, blt.org, (508) 771-2585

 

 



 

1540 Main St., West Barnstable, MA 02668, blt.org, (508) 771-2585
 

         

         May 13, 2025 

To the Members of the Town of Barnstable Community Preservation Committee: 

I am writing to submit this Letter of Intent for Community Preservation Act funding to 
preserve an ecologically important retired cranberry bog property within the Great Marsh 
and Barnstable Harbor watershed. 

Project Name:  Woodland Bogs Land Protection Project 
Owner:   Jenkins Nominee Trust 
Location:  301 Parker Road, West Barnstable 
Acres:    25.74 acres 
Map & Parcel: 176/019 
Purchase Price:  $615,000 
CPA Request: $307,500 
Timeline: BLT closing January 2026 
 

Project Description: The Woodland Bog Land Protection Project will permanently protect 
25.74 acres of retired cranberry bog and surrounding upland on Parker Road in historic West 
Barnstable. The Jenkins family has owned and farmed the property since the 1970’s as part 
of a larger 77-acre cranberry bog complex. The family has now decided to sell the property 
to Barnstable Land Trust (BLT) for conservation purposes. The ecological restoration and 
passive recreation opportunities of this important property within the Great Marsh and 
Barnstable Harbor watersheds, make this project a priority for Barnstable Land Trust. The 
Woodland Bog property includes the following important conservation values: 

• The 25.74-acre property is a key parcel connecting two extensive protected open 
space areas, Spruce Pond Conservation Area to the southeast and Bridge Creek 
Conservation Area to the northwest. Existing bog paths provide excellent 
opportunities for passive recreation with elevated upland areas providing panoramic 
scenic overlooks. 

• Groundwater flows into the bog system from the southwest and the east and flows 
out of the bogs into Bridge Creek within the Barnstable Great Marsh, and then on to 
Barnstable Harbor, one of the most ecologically important ecosystems on the Cape. 
The opportunity to restore or naturalize 13 acres of cranberry bog and 12 acres of 
upland buffer provides an opportunity to protect and enhance water quality within 
this important watershed.  

• The property includes state designated BioMap Wetland Core Habitat and Buffer, 
providing essential habitat for plant and animal species as well as the ability to 



   
 

1540 Main St., West Barnstable, MA 02668, blt.org, (508) 771-2585
 

 

capture heavy rains and help prevent flooding downstream, absorb greenhouse 
gases from the atmosphere, and store and purify water. The property includes a state 
certified vernal pool and connects to BioMap Vernal Pool Core Habitat, protecting 
important habitat for a variety of species, including amphibians and invertebrates, 
that use them to breed. 

 
Timeline for Preserving the Land:  

BLT has an agreement with the Jenkins family for the fee simple acquisition of the property, 
with a closing scheduled for January 2026. BLT is seeking local Community Preservation Act 
funding in support of the acquisition and will grant a conservation restriction to the Town of 
Barnstable, ensuring the land is preserved in perpetuity. 

Funding Request:  

Barnstable Land Trust seeks $307,500 in Community Preservation Act funds in support of 
the $615,000 acquisition price. Barnstable Land Trust will apply for an MA Conservation 
Partnership grant in June 2025 to help fund the acquisition.  

A project locus map is attached for your information. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

Sincerely,  

 

Janet Milkman 
Executive Director 
508-771-2585 x 101 
  



   
 

1540 Main St., West Barnstable, MA 02668, blt.org, (508) 771-2585
 

 

PROJECT LOCUS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



   
 

1540 Main St., West Barnstable, MA 02668, blt.org, (508) 771-2585
 

 

 

 



1540 Main Street West Barnstable, MA 02668       E-mail: janet@blt.org            Phone: 508-771-2585 

May 13, 2025 

Lindsey Counsell, Chairman 
Community Preservation Committee 
Town of Barnstable 
367 Main Street 
Hyannis, MA 02601 

Re: Mill Pond Preserve Land Protection Project 
Map Block and Lot: 058/012 

Dear Lindsey: 

This Community Preservation Act (CPA) full application follows the Letter of Intent reviewed at the 
Community Preservation Committee’s April 28, 2025 meeting. 

On behalf of the Barnstable Land Trust (BLT), I am submitting the enclosed application for funding of 
$600,000 for the purchase of a conservation restriction on 13-acres of land at 3640 Falmouth Road, in 
Marstons Mills village. The Mill Pond Preserve Land Protection Project will permanently protect a 
significant area of ecologically important pond-front property serving as a scenic wildlife refuge and 
protecting an active herring run for fish migrating upstream to spawn in Middle Pond. 

Barnstable Land Trust has an agreement with the current property owner for the purchase of the property 
and seeks Community Preservation Act funding in support of the acquisition. As required under the CPA, 
the Town of Barnstable will hold a conservation restriction on the 13-acre property. Barnstable Land Trust 
seeks $600,000 in Community Preservation Act funds in support of the acquisition, with the remaining 
50% of the acquisition cost, plus project costs, being raised through BLT’s private fundraising and a 
possible state Conservation Partnership Grant. 

We hope the Community Preservation Committee will invest in the protection of this important natural 
resource by supporting CPA funding for this project. If you have any questions regarding this application, 
or require additional information, please contact me at 508-771-2585 x 101. 

Sincerely, 

Janet Milkman 
Executive Director 



Appropriated CPA funds require one or more deed restrictions (conservation / historic preservation / housing). 
Sample restrictions are available at the Official Website of the Town of Barnstable www.town.barnstable.ma.us. 

Applicants must provide the first draft of their restriction to the CPC Project Coordinator. The Town of Barnstable 
Legal Department and Legal Consultant shall review and approve the restriction prior to the final commitment of the 

CPA funds to the project. 

CPC Application 
 

Submission Date:    May 13, 2025 
 

Project Title:   Mill Pond Preserve Land Protection Project 
 

Project Map/Parcel Number: 058/012 
 

Estimated Start Date:  April 1, 2025 
 

Estimated Completion Date: June 30, 2026 
 

Purpose (please circle all that apply): 
Open Space Public 
Community Housing Private 
Historic Non-Profit 
Recreation Partnership (Describe below #3) 
Town Affiliation** 
(**Applications must be approved by the Town Manager prior to submission) 

 
Applicant Contact: 
Name:   Janet Milkman, Executive Director 
Organization (if applicable): Barnstable Land Trust, Inc. 
Address:    1540 Main Street, West Barnstable, MA 02668 
Mailing Address:  Same 
Daytime Phone #:  508 771 2585 x 105 
E-mail Address:   janet@blt.org 

 
Primary Contact (if different from applicant contact): 
Name:  Same 
Address: 
Mailing Address: 
Daytime Phone #: 
E-mail Address: 

 



Appropriated CPA funds require one or more deed restrictions (conservation / historic preservation/ housing). 
Sample restrictions are available at the Official Website of the Town of Barnstable www.town.barnstable.ma.us. 

Applicants must provide the first draft of their restriction to the CPC Project Coordinator. The Town of Barnstable 
Legal Department and Legal Consultant shall review and approve the restriction prior to the final commitment of the 

CPA funds to the project. 

CPC Application 
 

Budget Summary: 
Total budget for project:    $1,286,500 
CPA funding request:    $   600,000 
Matching funds (committed/under consideration): $   686,500 

 
1. Project summary (description and goals): 
The Mill Pond Preserve Land Protection Project will permanently protect 13 acres of ecologically significant pond-front 
property on Mill Pond in the village of Marstons Mills. Barnstable Land Trust has an agreement with the current property 
owner for the purchase of the property and seeks Community Preservation Act funding in support of the acquisition. This 
13-acre pond-front property is a high-priority for protection due to the following important conservation values: 

• The 750± feet of pond frontage provides a crucial vegetated buffer to Mill Pond, helping protect water quality and 
providing vital wildlife habitat. 

• Areas of the property are mapped as NHESP Priority Habitat of Rare Species, BioMap Rare Species Core 
Habitat, and BioMap Regional Rare Species Habitat. Protection of this property will safeguard areas critical to the 
long-term survival of vulnerable species and their habitats. 

• The property is designated as BioMap Aquatic Core Habitat and Buffer, which includes freshwater habitats with 
the highest diversity of rare aquatic species, the strongest anadromous (migratory) fish runs, and habitats most 
resilient to a warming climate. These areas represent some of the most structurally and functionally intact 
freshwater ecosystems in the state. 

• The property lies within mapped BioMap Local Landscape Blocks, which consist of large, unfragmented areas of 
land and water that provide habitat for wide-ranging species, support dynamic natural processes, and enhance 
ecosystem resilience. 

• The property is bordered by 400 acres of existing protected open space, including Town-owned wellhead 
protection land to the north and west, and BLT-owned land across the pond to the east. These connections offer 
the opportunity to extend and improve trail networks for public passive recreation. 

• Nearly half of the property falls within the MassDEP Zone II Wellhead Protection Area, making it crucial for 
protecting water quality for drinking water supply. 

• The Marstons Mills River is the primary tributary within the Three Bays Watershed. Currently, the water quality of 
the Three Bays estuary is severely impaired and routinely exceeds water quality standards for nitrogen. The 
causes of this impairment include septic system leaching, stormwater runoff, and development in surrounding 
areas. Protecting this 13-acre property will help preserve the watershed from further degradation by preventing 
development along Mill Pond’s shoreline. 

 
 
 
 
 



2. How does this project help preserve Barnstable’s character? 
The property includes significant frontage on Mill Pond in historic Marstons Mills. Mill Pond dates back to the 17th 
century when part of the Marstons Mill River was dammed to power a gristmill on its shores. Mill Pond is one of the most 
photographed bodies of water on Cape Cod. Tucked into the intersection of Routes 28 and 149, it serves as a scenic 
wildlife refuge and an active herring run for fish migrating upstream to spawn in Middle Pond. Protection of the property 
will help preserve the scenic character of Marstons Mills and the Town of Barnstable. 

 
3. Partnership(s) Description: 
Barnstable Land Trust, Inc. (BLT) has an agreement with the current owner for the fee simple acquisition of the 13-acre 
property. Due to the accelerated timeline for closing required by the current owner, BLT’s nonprofit partner, The Compact 
of Cape Cod Conservation Trust, Inc. (The Compact), has agreed to pre-acquire the property on BLT’s behalf by June 30, 
2025. This intermediate step will allow BLT to launch the fundraising campaign necessary to fully fund the property 
acquisition. BLT plans to acquire the property in the first half of 2026 and grant a conservation restriction to the Town of 
Barnstable, ensuring permanent preservation of the land.  
 

4. Provide a detailed project timeline: 
 Timeline Action/Milestone 

March, 2025 Right to purchase assigned to BLT 

31 March, 2025  Exercise Notice issued to property owner  

April, 2025 Agreement with The Compact to act as conservation buyer 

May, 2025 Submit CPA Funding Application to Town of Barnstable 

April/May, 2025 Update Appraisal 

May, 2025 Draft Conservation Restriction 

June 24, 2025 Interim closing.  The Compact to act as interim "conservation buyer"  

June, 2025 Town Council Meeting CPA 1st reading 

July, 2025 Town Council Meeting CPA 2nd reading and vote 

July, 2025 Submit Conservation Partnership Grant Funding Application (or Town LAND grant) 

July, 2025 CR submitted to DCS for review 

October/November, 2025 Conservation Partnership Grant award notification 

Early 2026 CR approved for local signatures 

Early 2026 Collect CR signatures 

May, 2026 BLT acquires property from The Compact 

May, 2026 CR recorded - granted to Town of Barnstable 

May, 2026 CPA funds to BLT 

June, 2026 State Conservation Partnership Grant reimbursement 

 
 



5. How does this project meet the General Criteria and Category Specific Criteria for CPC projects? 
 

• Consistency with the Local Comprehensive Plan and other planning documents that have received wide 
scrutiny and input and have been adopted by the town;   
o Consistent with Final Vision Plan of LCPC, including to “Protect, restore and enhance priority natural habitats, salt 

and fresh water resources, and open spaces” and “Build on our outstanding recreational opportunities and enhance 
access to open spaces while also ensuring no environmental harm as recommended by the open space and 
recreation plan.”  

o Consistent with Goal 1 of Open Space and Recreation Plan (OSRP) to protect and maintain a maximum amount of 
open space to enhance environmental protection, recreational opportunities, and community character.   

o Consistent with Goal 2 of OSRP: Plan, coordinate and execute open space protection measures that complement 
community efforts to protect water supply, protect fresh and marine surface waters, preserve historic, scenic and 
cultural resources, and provide opportunities for farming and agriculture. Consistent with following sub-goals:  
 2.2 Coordinate open space protection measures with efforts to protect wildlife habitat and augment the Town’s 

green corridors and spaces and  
 2.3 Coordinate open space protection measures with efforts to protect fresh and marine wetlands and surface 

waters.  
o Consistent with Goal 3 of OSRP: Provide diverse recreational opportunities and access throughout Barnstable and 

ensure that the current and future needs of all user groups are met appropriately, and the following subgoals:   
 3.5 Provide adequate passive recreation facilities and programs;  
 3.6 Coordinate planning for the Town’s greenway network to maximize opportunities for trailways, bikeways, 

Cape Cod Pathways, and connections between open spaces.  

• Preservation of the essential character of the town; The property includes significant frontage on Mill Pond in 
historic Marstons Mills and provides the backdrop to a popular scenic overlook at Route 149. Protection of the 
property will help preserve the scenic character of Marstons Mills and the Town of Barnstable. 

• Save resources that would otherwise be threatened and/or serve a currently underserved population; 
Conservation of the property will protect land threatened by development. Without conservation, the property could be 
developed into five building lots.  

• Demonstrate practicality and feasibility and demonstrate that they can be implemented expeditiously and 
within budget; based on decades of expertise, experience, and flexibility at BLT this project can be completed within 
a year.  

• Produce an advantageous cost/benefit value; CPA funding would leverage a state Conservation Partnership grant, 
and BLT private fundraising, so that CPA funds would only need to cover less than 50% of the total project cost.   

• Leverage additional public and/or private funds; applications that identify commitment from other funding 
sources will receive a higher priority; see above, MA Conservation Partnership Grant, and private funding.  

• Serves more than one CPA purpose: property provides conservation, passive recreation, and historic preservation 
opportunities.   

  
Open Space Criteria  

• Protecting land bordering on wetlands in order to assist in minimizing or eliminating eutrophication of 
habitat; protection of the property, The parcel borders Mill Pond and provides a buffer for wildlife habitat and the 
protection of water quality.  

• Permanently protect important wildlife habitat, including areas that are of local significance for biodiversity. 
The locus parcel is thickly wooded upland and is mapped as NHESP Priority Habitat of Rare Species, BioMap Rare 
Species Core Habitat, and BioMap Regional Rare Species Habitat. 



• Contain a variety of habitats, with diversity of geologic features and types of vegetation; the property includes 
both wetland and upland, with varied topography. The property lies within mapped BioMap Local Landscape Blocks, 
which consist of large, unfragmented areas of land and water that provide habitat for wide-ranging species, support 
dynamic natural processes, and enhance ecosystem resilience  

• Preserve scenic, agricultural, historic, archeological or wooded character; The property serves as a scenic 
wildlife refuge and an active herring run for fish migrating upstream to spawn in Middle Pond. Protection of the 
property will help preserve the scenic and wooded character of Marstons Mills and the Town of Barnstable. 

• Provide opportunities for passive recreation and environmental education; the property abuts existing Town and 
BLT open space. A trail connection will provide new passive recreation opportunities.   

• Protect or enhance wildlife corridors, promote connectivity of habitat or prevent fragmentation of habitats; the 
property abuts existing protected opens space to the north and south, providing an important habitat connection.  

• Provide public access; provides access to a walking trail for passive recreation.  The property is bordered by 400 
acres of existing protected open space, including Town-owned wellhead protection land to the north and west, and 
BLT-owned land across the pond to the east. These connections offer the opportunity to extend and improve trail 
networks for public passive recreation. 

  
Historic Preservation Criteria   

• Protecting, preserving, enhancing, restoring and/or rehabilitating historic, cultural, architectural or 
archaeological resources of significance, especially those that are threatened. The property includes significant 
frontage on Mill Pond in historic Marstons Mills. Mill Pond dates back to the 17th century when part of the Marstons 
Mill River was dammed to power a gristmill on its shores. Mill Pond is one of the most photographed bodies of water 
on Cape Cod. Protection of the property will help preserve the scenic character of Marstons Mills and the Town of 
Barnstable. 

• Demonstrating a public benefit; via a walking trail, the public will have access to the property. Scenic views from the 
Mill Pond herring run overlook will be preserved. 

• Demonstrating the ability to provide permanent protection for maintaining the historic resource. The property 
will be restricted from development via a Conservation restriction granted to the Town, and Barnstable Land Trust will 
maintain the property in perpetuity.  

  
Recreation Criteria  

• Jointly benefit Conservation Commission and Recreation Commission initiatives by promoting passive 
recreation such as hiking, biking and cross-country skiing on town-owned property; provides public access to a 
new walking trail. 

  



6. Provide a detailed budget, including the following information, as applicable: (Fiscal Year, Total Cost, 
CPC Funds Requested, Other Sources of Funding sought and received, and cost estimates/quotes 
received): 

 
Project Costs   
Acquisition Cost  $1,200,000  
Additional project costs  $86,500 
TOTAL costs  $1,286,500  
    

Funding Sources   
LCA Grant  $8,550  
Deposit paid  $35,000  
Conservation Partnership Grant (pending application)  $425,000  
Town CPA funds  $600,000  
Mass Audubon Catalyst Fund (pending approval)  $100,000  
BLT fundraising  $117,950  
Total  $1,286,500  

 
  



7. Assessor’s office identification map and map and parcel number: Map 058 Parcel 012 
  

LOCUS 



Signature of Applicant Date 

Signature of Applicant Partnership Date 

**Additional information may be provided as well as requested. 

May 13, 2025











MILL POND LAND PROTECTION PROJECT, 13 ACRES 
3640 FALMOUTH ROAD, MARSTONS MILLS, BARNSTABLE 
Project Locus 

PROJECT 
LOCUS 

13 ACRES 



MILL POND LAND PROTECTION PROJECT, 13 ACRES 
3640 FALMOUTH ROAD, MARSTONS MILLS, BARNSTABLE 
Connected Open Space Parcels 

PROJECT 
LOCUS 

13 ACRES 

Water Protection 

Land Marstons Mills  
Conservation Area 

BLT 



MILL POND LAND PROTECTION PROJECT, 13 ACRES 
3640 FALMOUTH ROAD, MARSTONS MILLS, BARNSTABLE 
NHESP Priority Habitats of Rare Species 
BioMap Rare Species Core Habitat 

PROJECT 
LOCUS 

13 ACRES 

The property includes areas designated as NHESP Priority Habitat 
of Rare Species, and BioMap Rare Species Core Habitat. The 
protection of the property will protect areas critical to the long-
term conservation of our most vulnerable species and their 
habitats. 



MILL POND LAND PROTECTION PROJECT, 13 ACRES 
3640 FALMOUTH ROAD, MARSTONS MILLS, BARNSTABLE 
BioMap Aquatic Core Habitat and Buffer 
BioMap Regional Rare Species 

The property is designated as BioMap 
Aquatic Core Habitat and BioMap 
Aquatic Core Buffer, containing 
freshwater habitats with the highest rare 
aquatic species diversity, strongest 
anadromous (migratory) fish runs, and 
habitats most resilient to a warming 
climate. These areas represent the most 
structurally and functionally intact 
freshwater ecosystems in the state. 

PROJECT 
LOCUS 

13 ACRES 



MILL POND LAND PROTECTION PROJECT, 13 ACRES 
3640 FALMOUTH ROAD, MARSTONS MILLS, BARNSTABLE 
Zone I and Zone II Wellhead Protection Areas 

Almost half of the property falls with the 
MassDEP Zone II Wellhead Protection Area 
important for protecting drinking water supply. 

PROJECT 
LOCUS 

13 ACRES 



MILL POND LAND PROTECTION PROJECT, 13 ACRES 
3640 FALMOUTH ROAD, MARSTONS MILLS, BARNSTABLE 
BioMap Local Landscape Blocks 

Landscape Blocks comprise large areas of intact, 
unfragmented lands and waters that provide 
habitat for wide-ranging species and support 
dynamic natural processes and resilient 
ecosystems.  

PROJECT 
LOCUS 

13 ACRES 



MILL POND LAND PROTECTION PROJECT, 13 ACRES 
3640 FALMOUTH ROAD, MARSTONS MILLS, BARNSTABLE 
Diadromous Fish River Herring Spawning, Nursery and Migratory Habitat 

PROJECT 
LOCUS 

13 ACRES 

Diadromous Fish 
River Herring 
Spawning and 
Nursery Habitat 

Diadromous Fish 
Migratory Habitat 

Marstons Mills River 

Middle Pond 

Mill Pond 



MILL POND LAND PROTECTION PROJECT, 13 ACRES 
3640 FALMOUTH ROAD, MARSTONS MILLS, BARNSTABLE 
2023 Aerial Image 

PROJECT 
LOCUS 

13 ACRES 



MILL POND LAND PROTECTION PROJECT, 13 ACRES 
3640 FALMOUTH ROAD, MARSTONS MILLS, BARNSTABLE 
Existing Trails 


